LONDON BOROUGH OF BROMLEY

MINUTES

of the proceedings of the Meeting of the Council of the Borough held at 7.00 pm on 11 March 2024

Present:

The Worshipful the Mayor Councillor Mike Botting

The Deputy Mayor Councillor Keith Onslow

Councillors

Jeremy Adams Jonathan Andrews Jessica Arnold Felicity Bainbridge Kathy Bance MBE Yvonne Bear Nicholas Bennett J.P. Kim Botting FRSA Mark Brock David Cartwright QFSM Graeme Casev Josh Coldspring-White Will Connolly Aisha Cuthbert Sophie Dunbar Robert Evans Simon Fawthrop Kira Gabbert Adam Jude Grant

Hannah Gray Dr Sunil Gupta FRCP FRCPath Christine Harris Colin Hitchins Alisa Igoe Julie Ireland Mike Jack Simon Jeal **David Jefferys** Charles Joel Kevin Kennedy-Brooks Josh King Jonathan Laidlaw Kate Lymer Tony Owen Christopher Marlow Ruth McGregor Tony McPartlan

Alexa Michael Angela Page **Chris Price** Chloe-Jane Ross Will Rowlands Shaun Slator Colin Smith **Diane Smith** Mark Smith Alison Stammers Melanie Stevens Harry Stranger Ryan Thomson Michael Tickner Pauline Tunnicliffe **Thomas Turrell** Sam Webber Rebecca Wiffen

The meeting was opened with prayers

In the Chair The Mayor Councillor Mike Botting

58 Apologies for absence

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Peter Dean.

Apologies for lateness were received from Cllr Jonathan Andrews.

Council 11 March 2024

59 Declarations of Interest

There were no declaration of interest.

60 To confirm the Minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 26 February 2024

It was noted that Cllr Graeme Casey's name was spelt incorrectly on pages 4 and 5 of the minutes – this would be corrected.

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 26th February 2024 be confirmed.

61 Petition Report CSD24029

A petition asking the Council to install two pedestrian crossings outside the Crofton Schools in Orpington had been received in January 2024. The petition requested the Council to –

"Set up two zebra crossings – one in Crofton Lane near Crofton Infant School and the second in Towncourt Lane near Crofton Junior School in Orpington."

The lead petitioner, Ms Karina Malka, attended the meeting and addressed Councillors in support of her petition. She urged the Council to speed up the implementation of pedestrian crossings and if necessary to put temporary measures in place.

Cllr Nicholas Bennett, Portfolio Holder for Transport, Highways and Road Safety, responded to the petitioner, explaining that the Council was already investigating what the petitioners wanted, and that therefore no additional action was required.

A motion to take no further action on the petition was moved by Councillor Nicholas Bennett, seconded by Cllr Fawthrop and **CARRIED.**

62 Questions

Three questions had been received from members of the public for oral reply. The questions, with the answers given, are set out in <u>Appendix A</u> to these minutes.

One question had been received from a member of the public for written reply. The question, with the answer given, is set out in <u>Appendix B</u> to these minutes.

Nine questions had been received from members of the Council for oral reply. The questions, with the answers given, are set out in <u>Appendix C</u> to these minutes.

Six questions had been received from members of the Council for written reply. The questions, with the answers given, are set out in <u>Appendix D</u> to these minutes.

63 To consider any statements that may be made by the Leader of the Council, Portfolio Holders or Chairmen of Committees.

No statements were made.

64 Planning Related Changes to the Local Planning Protocol and the Scheme of Delegation Report CSD24039

A motion to approve the changes to the Local Planning Protocol and Code of Conduct and the Scheme of Delegation to Officers recommended by Development Control Committee, including further amendments circulated since the Committee's meeting and a suggestion from Cllr Adams about the order of paragraph 16.5 (c) of the Scheme of Delegation, was moved by Councillor Alexa Michael, seconded by Councillor Yvonne Bear and **CARRIED.**

65 To consider Motions of which notice has been given.

(A) Police Base Re-Openings

The following motion was proposed by Councillor Thomas Turrell and seconded by Councillor Hannah Gray -

"The Council thanks the Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police, Sir Mark Rowley, for coming to Bromley last summer to present his 'New Met for London' plan.

This Council broadly welcomes the measures in the plan, especially the commitment to restoring community policing. In line with this, Council calls on the Mayor's Office for Policing and Crime (MOPAC) to provide the necessary funding so the Metropolitan Police can re-open bases in Penge/ Crystal Palace and West Wickham, as well increasing the number of bases it has in the rural parts of the Borough. Council welcomes the reopening of the base at Green Street Green in Chelsfield. This will help to achieve the Commissioner's target of ensuring that no Police officer is more than 20 minutes away from the communities which they serve.

Council also calls on the Metropolitan Police to review the bureaucracy around volunteers covering front desks at the local police bases.

In addition, this Council is concerned that too many of the Borough's Safer Neighbourhood Teams (SNTs) are based out of Bromley Police Station. As such, their ability to patrol local neighbourhoods depends on the availability of Council 11 March 2024

public bus transport. Council calls on MOPAC to ensure all SNTs have access to Police vehicles so they can travel to these neighbourhoods whenever necessary, not when a bus can take them."

The following amendment was moved by Councillor Alison Stammers and seconded by Councillor Mark Smith -

To add the words "and Chislehurst" as follows -

"The Council thanks the Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police, Sir Mark Rowley, for coming to Bromley last summer to present his 'New Met for London' plan. This Council broadly welcomes the measures in the plan, especially the commitment to restoring community policing. In line with this, Council calls on the Mayor's Office for Policing and Crime (MOPAC) to provide the necessary funding so the Metropolitan Police can re-open bases in Penge/Crystal Palace, West Wickham and Chislehurst, as well increasing the number of bases it has in the rural parts of the Borough. Council welcomes the reopening of the base at Green Street Green in Chelsfield. This will help to achieve the Commissioner's target of ensuring that no Police officer is more than 20 minutes away from the communities which they serve.

Council also calls on the Metropolitan Police to review the bureaucracy around volunteers covering front desks at the local police bases. In addition, this Council is concerned that too many of the Borough's Safer Neighbourhood Teams (SNTs) are based out of Bromley Police Station. As such, their ability to patrol local neighbourhoods depends on the availability of public bus transport. Council calls on MOPAC to ensure all SNTs have access to Police vehicles so they can travel to these neighbourhoods whenever necessary, not when a bus can take them."

The amendment from Cllr Stammers was put to the vote and CARRIED.

A further amendment was moved by Councillor Tony McPartlan and seconded by Councillor Jeremy Adams as follows -

Delete everything after 'community policing' and replace with:

"Council recognises the funding challenges that the Metropolitan Police face and that the proportion of the Met police budget provided by City Hall has now increased from 19 per cent in 2016 to 27 per cent in the proposed budget for 2024-25. It also recognises the additional strain on funding recent extractions are having.

This Council will therefore work with Commissioner Sir Mark Rowley, Chief Superintendent Andy Brittain and Superintendent Luke Baldock to re-open bases in Penge/Crystal Palace and West Wickham, as well increasing the number of bases it has in other parts of the Borough. Bromley Council also calls on the Home Office to provide additional funding if this cannot be achieved within existing budgets.

Council welcomes the reopening of the base at Green Street Green in Chelsfield. This will help to achieve the Commissioner's target of ensuring that no Police officer is more than 20 minutes away from the communities which they serve.

In addition, this Council is concerned that too many of the Borough's Safer Neighbourhood Teams (SNTs) are based out of Bromley Police Station. As such, their ability to patrol local neighbourhoods depends on the availability of public bus transport. Council will work with Chief Superintendent Andy Brittain and Superintendent Luke Baldock to ensure all SNTs have access to Police vehicles so they can travel to these neighbourhoods whenever necessary, not when a bus can take them. It will call on the Home Office to provide additional funding if this cannot be achieved within existing budgets."

The amendment from Cllr McPartlan was put to the vote and LOST.

On being put to the vote, the motion from Cllr Turrell as amended by Cllr Stammers was **CARRIED**.

(B) ULEZ and the Mayor of London

The following motion was proposed by Councillor Colin Hitchins (with an alteration to remove the word "premature") and seconded by Councillor Josh Coldspring-White -

"This Council believes that the best interests of the people of Bromley have not been served by the extension of ULEZ and profligate spending by the Mayor of London resulting in enormous increases in his precept on council taxpayers."

On being put to the vote, the motion from Cllr Hitchins was CARRIED.

(C) Household Support Fund

The motion due to be proposed by Councillor Alisa Igoe and seconded by Councillor Chris Price was withdrawn.

(D) Live Streaming Council Meetings

The following motion was proposed by Councillor Chloe-Jane Ross and seconded by Councillor Sam Webber -

"Council Notes:

(1) Online access to Council meetings improves local democracy by encouraging more residents to engage in council business with convenient access, whilst increasing transparency and accountability in Council decision making.

(2) That an increasing number of local authorities are recording and streaming Council meetings live routinely and maintaining the recordings for public access thereafter. (3) Bromley Council has successfully live streamed Council meetings during COVID and after.

(4) That most Bromley Council meetings are already hybrid meetings, with attendees in the Council Chamber and Council Officers and Councillors viewing and/or participating online (noting Councillors are not permitted to vote online), and many hybrid meetings are already being recorded for internal purposes.

(5) There are cost and resourcing implications in providing a 5-star live streaming service, however the Council has existing resources to offer basic streaming and to upload recordings of Council meetings online with minimal cost implications.

Therefore, Council moves to:

(1) Livestream all future Full Council meetings and Committee meetings.(2) To maintain recordings of meetings online for an appropriate length of time.

(3) Continue to investigate affordable enhancements to live streaming and availability of recordings online to improve the service without incurring significant costs."

The following amendment was proposed by Councillor Jessica Arnold and seconded by Cllr Josh King -

"Council notes:

(1) Online access to Council meetings improves local democracy by encouraging more residents to engage in Council business with convenient access, whilst increasing transparency and accountability in Council decisionmaking. This is particularly important for allowing people with disabilities or reduced mobility, caring responsibilities or evening/shift working patterns to attend Council meetings.

(2) That an increasing number of local authorities are recording and streaming Council meetings live routinely.

(3) Bromley Council has successfully livestreamed Council meetings during COVID and after.

(4) That most Bromley Council meetings are already hybrid meetings, with attendees in the Council Chamber and Council Officers and Councillors viewing and/or participating online.

(5) There are cost and resourcing implications in providing a 5-star livestreaming service; however, the Council has existing resources to offer basic online viewing access and to upload recordings of Council meetings online with minimal cost implications.

Therefore, Council moves to:

(1) Provide online viewing access to Full Council meetings and Committee meetings held in public from no later than three months after the move of these meetings into our new premises at Churchill Court.

(2) To robustly consider what an appropriate length of time should be to keep recordings of meetings available for public access online, recognising the pros and cons of either short or long periods of access, to be considered by the General Purposes and Licensing Committee.

(3) Continue to investigate affordable enhancements to livestreaming and availability of recordings online to improve access without incurring significant costs, and keep our arrangements under review for quality and cost, with future updates coming to the General Purposes and Licensing Committee."

On being put to the vote, the amendment from Cllr Arnold was LOST.

On being put to the vote, the motion from Cllr Ross was LOST.

66 The Mayor's announcements and communications.

The Mayor invited Cllr Diane Smith, Portfolio Holder for Adult Care and Health, to make an announcement. Cllr Smith announced that the Council had just won two iESE ltd awards – the gold award for its work on tackling loneliness, and a silver award for health services for the homeless.

The Mayor reported that the Mayor's Awards evening on 7th March had been a great success, and he urged Members to sign up for the last few spaces on the wine tasting evening on 16th March.

The Meeting ended at 9.58 pm

Mayor